
 

 

Meeting Minutes 
Arkansas Medical Marijuana Commission 

 
Thursday, December 04, 2025 

1509 W. 7th Street, 1st Floor Conference Room 
Streamed Via www.myarkansaspbs.org/arcan 

James Miller, Chairman   
Amber Pool 
Tyler Ketner 

  Kevin Case 
  Dennis Chambers 

 
 
 
 The Medical Marijuana Commission meeting was called to order by Chairman James Miller.  

Chairman Miller, Commissioners Chambers, Case, Pool and Ketner appeared in person.  

 

The first agenda item which was the approval of the minutes. After reviewing the minutes, 

Commissioner Case made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by Commissioner Pool, 

and approved by a vote of 5-0.   

 

The next agenda items were ownership transfers for the following:  

1. License 272. Good Day Farm Monticello. 

a. ABC Director Christy Bjornson notified the commission that no issues were found. 

Assistant Attorney General Jessica Kloss requested additional documentation and 

recommended to continue this transfer of ownership. Commissioner Chambers made a 

motion to approve the continuance, which was seconded by Commissioner Ketner, and 

approved by a vote of 5-0. This transfer of ownership was continued to the January 

meeting.  

2. License 329. Dark Horse Medicinals. 

a. ABC Director Bjornson and Assistant Attorney General Kloss notified the commission 

that no issues were found. Commissioner Case made a motion to approve the transfer 

of ownership, which was seconded by Commissioner Chambers, and approved by a 

vote of 5-0.  



 

 

3. License 341. The Collective Cannabis. 

a. ABC Director Bjornson and Assistant Attorney General Kloss notified the commission 

that no issues were found. Commissioner Chambers made a motion to approve the 

transfer of ownership, which was seconded by Commissioner Pool, and approved by a 

vote of 5-0.  

 

The next item was the public hearing for public comment regarding the Management Contract 

Rules. ABC Director Bjornson informed the Commission that ABC received one written comment from 

Attorney Erika Gee, of Wright, Lindsey & Jennings. Bill Paschall, executive director of the Arkansas 

Cannabis Industry Association, spoke first. Mr. Paschall opposes the proposed management rules, as there 

are no out-of-state management contracts in existence. He noted that at the start of Arkansas’ Medical 

Marijuana industry, license holders partnered with out-of-state consultants to utilize their expertise. Mr. 

Paschall stated that currently, the industry has thousands of employees, generates over $30,000,000.00 in 

tax revenue for the state of Arkansas, each year, and the license holders have acquired the necessary 

expertise, in order to manage their facilities without out-of-state consultants. Mr. Paschall further suggested 

that the management contract rules not be approved as written. Following Mr. Paschall’s statements, Ms. 

Erika Gee highlighted a few items in the written comment. She noted that the management contract rules 

create a problematic structure and create unintended consequences for the operation of the industry. Ms. 

Gee indicated that the definitions of “Management Company”, “Management Contract” and 

“Commercially Reasonable” were too broad, would require the commission to review a substantial number 

of business contracts, and cause delays and uncertainty within the industry. Ms. Gee notes that the proposed 

rules require management contracts to include the ability for either party to terminate the contract with 

reasonable notice and an opportunity for the parties to renegotiate the contract at any time. She indicated 

that the commission does not have authority, under Amendment 98, to determine such aspects of a business 

relationship, and implies that the proposed rules are unconstitutional. Ms. Gee suggested that the 

commission determine another method to approach the concept of out-of-state interest operating in the 



 

 

Arkansas Medical Marijuana industry. Chairman Miller asked Assistant Attorney General Kloss, if there 

was a question whether the proposed management rulers were unconstitutional, which she declined to 

comment. ABC Director Bjornson informed the commission that there was a public comment period and 

the Attorney General’s office was involved in the process of reviewing previous drafts of the proposed 

management contract rules. She states that the Attorney Generals office did not present any constitutional 

issues, at that time. Commissioner Chambers inquired about the renegotiation issues presented by Attorney 

Gee. Ms. Gee noted the issue being the requirement to provide an opportunity for parties to renegotiate. 

Chairman Miller inquired about the term “commercially reasonable”. Ms. Gee was not aware of the use of 

this term within the medical marijuana industry for other states. Chairman Miller asked if the proposed 

rules would need to be legislated. Ms. Gee stated that the proposed rules exceed the authority of the 

commission. Chairman Miller inquired about an incident where a licensee possessed limited ability to 

manage and operate within the industry. Mr. Paschall stated that the industry corrected itself, over time and 

as experience was obtained. Commission Chambers asked if there were any measures in place to prevent 

out-of-state consultants form reentering the Arkansas Medical Marijuana industry. Mr. Paschall stated that 

this measure lies in the hands of the Arkansas licensees. Commissioner Case requested a proposed solution 

for the concerns presented. Mr. Paschall suggested that the proposed rules be drafted to directly address the 

concern of out-of-state contracts. Commission Chambers inquired about the purpose and intention of the 

proposed rules. ABC Director Bjornson stated the proposed rules were initiated to provide transparency to 

the commission of legitimate ownership and to address the issue of out-of-state companies operating 

Arkansas businesses within the industry. Commissioner Chambers inquires about the term “commercially 

reasonable” regarding the consideration of the state of Arkansas. ABC Director Bjornson invited the 

commission to review the public comments, proposed rules, and suggest changes before voting on the 

proposed management contract rules. Chairman Miller requested that the commission review the public 

comments and proposed rules, then plan to discuss further during the January commission meeting. ABC 

Director Bjornson offered to provide summaries to highlight the differences between the drafts of the 

proposed rules. Commissioner Case requested an outline of concerns from the industry. Chairman Miller 



 

 

asked Assistant Attorney General Kloss to review and confirm the constitutionality of the proposed rules. 

Commissioner Chambers noted that he understands the impact the proposed rules would have on various 

business contracts within the industry. Commissioner Pool inquired about the process of determination. 

ABC Director Bjornson stated that the commission would have the authority to vote for a new draft, modify 

the existing draft or reject the proposed management contract rules.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


